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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          3  Thank you for coming.  I'm Council Member Jim

          4  Gennaro, Chair of New York City Council Committee on

          5  Environmental Protection.  I'd like to welcome you

          6  all to this hearing on proposed Intro. No. 148A, a

          7  bill that speaks to global warming pollution,

          8  emissions from power plants in New York City.  In a

          9  moment, I'll turn to Council Member Vallone, the

         10  lead sponsor of Intro. No. 148A to talk about the

         11  legislation, but first, I'd like to make a few

         12  comments.

         13                 From a global perspective, there is

         14  no more pressing environmental concern than global

         15  warming.  Plain and simple.  The implications of

         16  global warming are myriad, and very likely,

         17  devastating.  This includes myriad and devastating

         18  impacts to our health, our environment, and out

         19  economy here at home.  New York City.  These impacts

         20  may include worsening air pollution, and worse

         21  respiratory illness, such as lung cancer and asthma;

         22  flooding of our infrastructure, such as roadways and

         23  subways; increased risk of diseases, like Lyme

         24  disease, encephalitis, and malaria for City

         25  residents; permanent loss of our beaches and
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          2  coastlines; reduced tourism; and lessening tourism

          3  economies; loss of wetlands and other critical

          4  habitat; and the accompanying loss of wildlife;

          5  reducibility of New York's water system to reliably

          6  meet demands; and increased power demands, and thus,

          7  further pressure on an already taxed power grid.

          8                 Despite the substantial threat that

          9  global warming poses, there is a virtual vacuum of

         10  leadership on this issue in Washington.  And this

         11  vacuum must be filled.  As a City whose environment,

         12  health, and economy stands to suffer permanently,

         13  and immeasurably from the possible adverse impacts

         14  of global warming pollution, there is good reason

         15  why this City must be a leader on fighting global

         16  warming pollution.

         17                 Intro. No. 148A is such a bill.  I

         18  commend Council Member Vallone, a great

         19  environmentalist in his own right, for his

         20  leadership, and persistence, for championing this

         21  legislation and for fighting global warming, and

         22  promoting cleaner, more efficient approaches to

         23  meeting this City's energy needs.

         24                 I would like to thank Council staff,

         25  Donna De Costanzo, Rich Colon, Jeffrey Haberman, and
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          2  my Chief of Staff, Peter Washburn.  Also, we're

          3  joined by Veronica McNeil, from the Finance

          4  Division, who always works so hard on our hearings

          5  as well, for all of their efforts related to the

          6  bill, and today's hearing.

          7                 I would also like to acknowledge the

          8  hard work of Peter Vallone's Chief of Staff, George

          9  Mihaltses, Legislative Director, Kathleen Simms, on

         10  the bill and this hearing as well.

         11                 As you know, this is not the first

         12  hearing that we've had on this bill.  The bill has

         13  had some changes since we last heard it, and I would

         14  like to thank Council Member Vallone for his ongoing

         15  efforts to improve the bill.  In light of recent

         16  events in global warming, we know that the Northeast

         17  regional states have banned together to try to do

         18  something about global warming.  And of course, this

         19  bill tries to keep pace with those developments.

         20                 I also neglected to thank in a

         21  special way, Chris Manning, from the Mayor's Office,

         22  who always helps us to get these hearings done, and

         23  get these bills negotiated.  Thank you, Chris.

         24                 So without further adieu, I'd like to

         25  turn it over- actually, with a little more further
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          2  adieu, before I introduce Peter, I'd like to

          3  recognize Council Member Koppell.  We also will be

          4  joined from other members of the Committee as the

          5  hearing proceeds.

          6                 And now, without further adieu, I'd

          7  like to introduce the main sponsor of the bill,

          8  Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr. for comment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chair.

         11                 Before I was a Council Member, I was

         12  counsel to a group called C.H.O.K.E., the Coalition

         13  Helping Organized Kleaner Environment, and the

         14  founder of that group is here, and will be

         15  testifying.  What we were formed to do was to fight

         16  against the energy policy in existence in the power

         17  plant policy in existence. We're not opposed to new

         18  power.  We understand we need new, cleaner, more

         19  efficient plants.  We just don't need the old filthy

         20  ones that continue to operate.  And we don't need

         21  all the plants to be put in one area of New York

         22  City, so those residents are forced to suffer asthma

         23  and other illnesses which these plants bring.

         24                 The new system that's in place for

         25  siting power plants under Governor Pataki has been
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          2  an abysmal failure.  New York City is the only city

          3  in the nation, right now, that's still siting power

          4  plants within its city limits.  We have power plants

          5  in Upstate New York, clean power, too much power.

          6  They don't know what to do with it.  Trying to sell

          7  this power.  And we won't take it.  We'd rather

          8  build them here, in our neighborhoods.  It's

          9  outrageous.  It's outrageous, and it's because of

         10  New York State's policy.

         11                 A quick history of Astoria, right

         12  where I represent, 60 percent of the power for the

         13  entire city is produced in that one neighborhood.

         14  And as we speak, a new power plant is being built,

         15  called Astoria Energy, just to continue to ram it in

         16  our face.  And that power plant is a scam.  It's a

         17  complete scandal.  It was built over opposition from

         18  the community.  It was given a contract with Con Ed

         19  for ten years to sell power to Con Ed, even though

         20  it doesn't exist in an attempt by Governor Pataki to

         21  get finance to back this power plant.  That didn't

         22  work.  Then he illegally tried to give them Liberty

         23  Bonds, which Mike Gennaro and I sued and stopped.

         24  That didn't work.  Unfortunately, they did finally

         25  find the financing.  This plant represented by one
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          2  of Governor Pataki's good friends, and is being

          3  built as we speak.

          4                 But this is what's going on.  This is

          5  the environment that this bill that we're hearing

          6  today, exists in. This bill was introduced in its

          7  original form over five years ago by the former

          8  Speaker of the City Council, who some of you may

          9  remember, Peter Vallone Sr.  And he realized that

         10  these power plants are regulated by the Federal

         11  Government and by the State. But there was one area

         12  they didn't regulate.  And that was carbon dioxide.

         13  So we stepped in to regulate carbon dioxide

         14  emissions.

         15                 Now that bill was derailed by 9- 11

         16  back then, and since then Chairman Gennaro and I

         17  have been working very hard to put this in a form

         18  that would be acceptable in the political sense,

         19  because as you know, these things sound great, but

         20  you do have to get the support of other members in

         21  order to get this through.  And we think we've

         22  finally done that.  We have a great bill here, which

         23  will hopefully be able to pass through the City

         24  Council.

         25                 We are, for the first time, in this
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          2  nation's history, setting a cap on the amount of

          3  carbon dioxide which power plants are allowed to

          4  emit.  This will be a model for the entire world

          5  when it's done.  And as Jim said, the people worked

          6  tremendously on this.  Donna De Costanzo, who's

          7  sitting right next to him, my staff, George

          8  Mihaltses, and Kathleen Simms, and others, and

          9  especially Chairman Gennaro for shepherding this

         10  through.  And the other members this staff.  This

         11  will be a bill of worldwide significance when we get

         12  it through, and we will continue to work on this

         13  until we get it through.

         14                 And I want to thank also, people like

         15  Tony, and as you can tell, and the C.H.O.K.E. Group

         16  that have been working on this with us since day

         17  one.  And I look forward to the hearing. Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chair for having this.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         20  Council Member Vallone.  I also wish to echo your

         21  congratulations to C.H.O.K.E for all that you've

         22  done over the years on this bill, and all the good

         23  folks at NRDC.  Thank you.  Thank you for being

         24  here.

         25                 And so we're calling our first panel.
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          2    We're very happy to be joined by Gil Quiniones, of

          3  the New York City Economic Development Corporation.

          4  Thank you.  Thank you Gil for being here. The

          5  pleasure is always.  Michael DeLaney, also of the

          6  Economic Development Corporation.  And Jonathan

          7  Dickinson, of the New York City Office of

          8  Environmental Coordination.

          9                 I am very pleased that you could be

         10  here today. It's always been a pleasure working with

         11  all of you on energy related issues.  And is the

         12  custom, in our Committee, we'll ask the Counsel to

         13  the Committee, Donna De Costanzo, to swear the

         14  witnesses, and then you can proceed with your

         15  statements.

         16                 MS.DE COSTANZO: In the testimony that

         17  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         18  the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

         19  truth?

         20                 MR. QUINIONES: I do.

         21                 MR. DELANEY: I do.

         22                 MR. DICKINSON: I do.

         23                 MS. DE CONSTANZO: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do we have your

         25  statements? The Sergeant will take the statements.
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          2  I have Mr. Delaney's.  It's the only statement.

          3  Okay, fine.

          4                 MR. DELANEY: Good afternoon, Chairman

          5  Gennaro, and members of the Committee.  For the

          6  record, I am Michael Delaney, Vice President for

          7  Legislative and Regulatory Affairs at the Energy

          8  Department at the New York City Economic Development

          9  Corporation. In that capacity, I have full

         10  responsibility for our participation in State and

         11  Federal energy, regulatory, and legislative

         12  proceedings. And I also serve as a representative of

         13  the City at the New York Independent System

         14  Operator.

         15                 As the Chair has noted, with me is

         16  Gil Quiniones, who's the Senior VP for Energy and

         17  Telecommunications at EDC, and not, incidentally, my

         18  boss.  And on my right, Jonathan Dickinson, who as

         19  you noted, Senior Project Manager for EOC.

         20                 We appreciate the opportunity to

         21  testify today on Introduction 148A, the proposed

         22  local law concerning reductions in greenhouse gas

         23  emissions.  And also on the Administration's current

         24  energy priorities as they relate to this proposal.

         25  As you know, Mayor Bloomberg designated the EDC
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          2  Energy Department as the lead in addressing a wide

          3  range of energy- related matters on behalf of the

          4  City, and in 2003, he named Gil Quiniones as the

          5  Chair of the New York City Energy Policy Task Force.

          6                 Intro. No. 148A would seek to reduce

          7  emissions of carbon dioxide by electric generation

          8  facilities in New York City. The primary mechanism

          9  to be used in this effort would be the creation of

         10  caps on allowable CO2 emissions, with more stringent

         11  limits required in the years after initial

         12  implementation, and the establishment of a City-

         13  wide cap and trade program for permissible carbon

         14  dioxide emission allowances.

         15                 At the World Environmental Day events

         16  in San Francisco earlier this year, New York City

         17  was recognized as the most sustainable large city in

         18  the United States, based in part, on measures that

         19  we have already undertaken to conserve energy, save

         20  resources and taxpayer dollars, and also to reduce

         21  the emissions of greenhouse gases.

         22                 As you know, Mr. Chairman, the City

         23  has no coal- fire power plants, which contribute by

         24  far, the largest amounts of air pollution, and

         25  increasingly the City plants are fueled primarily,
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          2  or in some cases, exclusively, by natural gas, the

          3  cleanest of the fossil fuels.  And also by low-

          4  sulfur fuel oil.  We are the most energy- efficient

          5  urban area in the country, particularly given our

          6  widespread use of public transportation rather than

          7  automobiles here and our per capita electric

          8  consumption is approximately half of the national

          9  average.

         10                 Additionally, the City's share of

         11  total carbon monoxide emissions should actually

         12  decrease, at least in relative terms, as a number of

         13  our power plants are modernized, while others, such

         14  as the old Poletti plant, and I might add as well,

         15  Con Ed's former Waterside plant, are retired

         16  completely over the next several years.

         17            The Mayor's Energy Policy Task Force in

         18  2004, identified a number of electric reliability

         19  and cost concerns, and made 28 specific

         20  recommendations for addressing them.  If

         21  implemented, many of the recommended actions will

         22  have the effect of lowering the output of greenhouse

         23  gases, and other air emissions as well.  The

         24  multifaceted approach urged by the Task Force to

         25  meet our future energy needs will include increased
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          2  demand side measures, the greater use of

          3  transmission lines into the City the repowering of

          4  existing power plants, and the development of new

          5  in- City sources of energy.  The City and the other

          6  Task Force members are now seeking to implement

          7  these and other measures to enhance system

          8  reliability, which will also benefit the

          9  environment.

         10                 For example, the recent replacement

         11  of Con Edison's Waterside plant with the repowered

         12  East River 14th Street, or 15th Street facility, is

         13  already reducing the volume of air emissions while

         14  simultaneously increasing electric generation

         15  capacity in the City.

         16                 In a similar vein, KeySpan has

         17  reduced its rate of emissions per megawatt hour

         18  through its recent expansion of the Ravenswood

         19  complex, which allows relatively less use of the

         20  company's older generating facilities.

         21                 Similarly, the Public Service

         22  Commission's March 2005 Order implemented a demand

         23  management initiative for Con Edison which goes

         24  beyond, I might say, any of the Statewide SBC

         25  requirements, in the Con Edison's electric rate
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          2  plan, shall materially increase the use of in- City

          3  demand reduction measures, and thereby diminish the

          4  need for additional generation sources. Demand

          5  management, in this context, encompasses energy

          6  efficiency, load management, and greater use of

          7  clean distributed generation. The aggregate effect

          8  of all these, and similar measures in the coming

          9  years will be to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in

         10  the City at least in relative terms, compared to the

         11  present output of electricity.

         12                 The Bloomberg Administration recently

         13  undertook a number of concrete actions to confront

         14  the issue of greenhouse gas emissions.  These

         15  include the following:

         16                 The City's 2002 entry into the Cities

         17  for Climate Protection campaign which was

         18  administered by ICLEI, the Local Governments for

         19  Sustainability organization.

         20                 The Mayor's endorsement earlier this

         21  year of the U.S. Conference of Mayor's Climate

         22  Protection Agreement, which commits to a gradually

         23  declining rate of greenhouse gas emissions.

         24                 The Active City participation in

         25  recent multistate greenhouse gas lawsuits, including
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          2  two; one seeking to designate CO2 as a criteria

          3  pollutant, which it is not now, as you know; and

          4  secondly, to seek reductions in the Midwest power

          5  plant emissions that affect the City through the air

          6  shed that we're exposed to.

          7                 Enhancing energy efficiency in the

          8  City's own government operations is a key directive

          9  to the Mayor's Task Force on Sustainability, and

         10  also, as you know, forms a major segment of the

         11  Energy Policy Task Force recommendations now in the

         12  implementation stage.

         13                 Recent studies, including the review

         14  of Queens County air quality, which was prepared in

         15  2003 for NRDC, KeySpan, and for the C.H.O.K.E

         16  organization that was mentioned already, has shown

         17  that a significant portion of the total air

         18  pollution load in the City is from airborne

         19  transportation from other regions.  This fact, we

         20  believe, argues for a national, or in the absence of

         21  a national, at least a regional solution to the air

         22  emissions problem.  And suggests also, that attempts

         23  to address it in New York City alone would not be

         24  truly effective.

         25                 The impact of the older, highly
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          2  polluting plants upwind of New York City,

          3  particularly the coal plants, reminds us that air

          4  emissions do not respect borders, and suggests also

          5  the need for an area- wide approach.  A purely local

          6  initiative, such as that proposed in Intro. No.

          7  148A, would likely give rise to a so called leakage

          8  factor, which is defined as the increased discharge

          9  likely from out- of- state sources when emission

         10  limits only apply in a particular locality.

         11                 Given that the City is already a

         12  highly efficient energy consumer, and that the

         13  problem of air emissions goes well beyond the City's

         14  borders, there also must be an assurance that we do

         15  not jeopardize our competitive position,

         16  particularly in an environment as we all know, of

         17  sharply rising energy costs.

         18                 The aggressive schedule for emission

         19  cap levels in Intro. No. 148A is, in our view,

         20  unwarranted, especially as CO2 emissions here are

         21  already well below the national average.  The

         22  achievable reductions here in the City, must be

         23  compared to the significant cost that would be borne

         24  by consumers due to our relatively greater current

         25  use of the cleanest fossil fuels.
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          2            New York City cannot improve regional air

          3  quality acting alone.  The possible demonstration

          4  value of even attempting to do so, through the

          5  mechanism described in Intro. No. 148A is in our

          6  view, heavily outweighed by the burden such a purely

          7  local program would likely place on our citizens.

          8                 In addition, any market that would be

          9  created solely in the City, would in our view, be

         10  highly illiquid, as there are only three major power

         11  plant owners here who are subject to this

         12  legislation.

         13                 In addition, and in some way, most

         14  importantly, Intro. No. 148A is unnecessary, in view

         15  of the recent developments with the Regional

         16  Greenhouse Gas Initiative.  Otherwise known as RGGI.

         17    Some two years of stakeholder discussions have

         18  taken place among nine Northeastern states,

         19  including New York, and they have now yielded a

         20  concrete plan to address power plant emissions on a

         21  regional level.  RGGI will establish a regional cap

         22  and trade program to reduce carbon dioxide emissions

         23  from power plants by creating marketable air

         24  emission allowances that can be bought and sold

         25  among power generators.  And if it's properly
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          2  designed, will operate as a direct financial

          3  incentive to reduce those emissions over time.

          4  Given the advanced stage the RGGI process has

          5  already reached, developing a separate City program

          6  now would raise serious conformity concerns, and

          7  could potentially be subject to State preemption as

          8  well.

          9                 And I might say, I think this is one

         10  area where we have a difference.  Council Member

         11  Vallone mentioned this has been before you.  Before,

         12  I know that Richard Miller, Gil Quiniones'

         13  predecessor at EDC, testified back in 2003.  But at

         14  that time, this was simply a concept.  And I think

         15  now we have a concrete proposal that is in front of

         16  the State, and it's probably the subject of rule-

         17  making in the very near future.

         18                 Each of the nine participating states

         19  will implement its own RGGI limits, although the

         20  framework will be established through an interstate

         21  agreement.  The New York State Department of

         22  Environmental Conservation is expected to undertake

         23  a rule making process later this year, has already

         24  held stakeholder meetings toward that end, and will

         25  establish the mechanisms needed to implement RGGI
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          2  limits in New York State.

          3                 There will be an extensive

          4  stakeholder process in which the City of New York

          5  will play an integral part.  One of the most

          6  critical issues in that process will be an

          7  assessment of the benefits and the burdens of the

          8  precise terms that are put into regulations here in

          9  New York State.

         10                 In short, while the Administration

         11  shares the Council's goal of reducing greenhouse gas

         12  emissions, we must oppose Intro. No. 148A.  We

         13  believe the best forum to address air emission

         14  issues in clearly a regional one.  The RGGI is well

         15  underway at this point, and we feel confident that a

         16  comprehensive regional initiative to establish a cap

         17  and trade system for power plant carbon dioxide

         18  emissions will almost certainly come to fruition

         19  very shortly in New York State, and throughout most

         20  of the Northeast.

         21                 A well- designed regional plan will

         22  not only benefit New York, it should also help to

         23  catalyze a national greenhouse gas program.  We urge

         24  the City Council to join us in helping to craft a

         25  wider program that offers the best prospect of
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          2  bringing about meaningful reductions in emissions,

          3  rather than focus our limited resources on a local

          4  initiative that may ultimately detract from the

          5  regional efforts.

          6                 Once again, we appreciate the

          7  opportunity to appear before you, and would be glad

          8  to respond to any questions you have. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Delaney.  Thank you for your comprehensive

         11  statement.

         12                 I just made some notes in your

         13  statement as you were reading it.  I'll go over some

         14  of those, maybe make some clarifications.

         15                 We're joined by Council Member

         16  Domenic Recchia, from Brooklyn.  A valued member of

         17  this Committee.  Thank you, Council Member Recchia.

         18                 I have some questions.  I know that

         19  Councilman has some questions as well.  While you

         20  make a case for the regional and area- wide

         21  approach, through the RGGI process, I just want to

         22  get some further details on -- I guess it's a two

         23  part question -- on how close we are to having the

         24  RGGI process worked out with the cap and trade, and

         25  how close we are to having a paradigm that's really
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          2  going to work.  That's part one.  And part two is

          3  why us acting locally would interfere with that

          4  process.  It's been positive to me that perhaps our

          5  actions on a local level could help to crystalize a

          6  sort of working paradigm that the RGGI people may

          7  even use.  So how close are we with the RGGI?  And

          8  why do you think that us acting locally is going to

          9  interfere with that process when it's been explained

         10  to me that we may even be helping that process.

         11                 MR. DELANEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         12    As to the first part of your question, there has

         13  been an approximately two year stakeholder process

         14  that's been going on among nine Northeastern states.

         15  It's involved a series of regional meeting. Mr.

         16  Pulakowski (phonetic) from OEC is not with us today,

         17  but I know as late as September 12th, he attended a

         18  meeting with representatives from DEC, from

         19  Environmental Conservation in Albany in which the

         20  preliminary indication was that there have been

         21  State allocations made that New York State is

         22  approximately 45 percent of this entire group of

         23  nine states, since it involves some smaller states

         24  as well, New Jersey, and Delaware and the like.

         25                 When I said in my testimony it
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          2  appears to be coming to fruition, I recognize this

          3  is still an inchoate process, but I think we are now

          4  at a stage, as I tried to indicate, that's very

          5  different from where we were two years ago.  And as

          6  I think you know, Governor Pataki was one of the

          7  leaders in the RGGI process, among the nine

          8  Northeastern states.  So my expectation is that by

          9  the end of this years, or the very early part of

         10  next year, there will be a DEC rule- making process.

         11    The RGGI Agreement is essentially and interstate

         12  compact, but does not have collective force.  That

         13  is, each state will implement its own RGGI

         14  mechanisms. In some cases, it may be by legislation,

         15  in the State of New York, it's apparently to be a

         16  rule- making process.  But I do think this is a

         17  genuine, concrete proposal.

         18                 I think the concern that we had, and

         19  this was I think partly a lawyer's concern, that

         20  there are differences in the timeline, and in the

         21  declining rate of emissions that would be required

         22  in the RGGI process versus the City initiative,

         23  which would raise, I think, possible conformity

         24  concerns for generators to whom it is subject, and

         25  might also introduce competitive issues to the
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          2  extent that New York City has different requirements

          3  and you might argue, more stringent requirements

          4  than might be set on the State level.  There could

          5  also be conceivably a preemption issue that arises

          6  as between local conformity to a State regime.

          7                 So I think that's the nature of our

          8  concerns.  We do think this is a genuine process,

          9  this is not the theoretical construct that it was

         10  two years ago when Gil's predecessor was here.  And

         11  for that reason, we have taken the position we have.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What if we kind

         13  of synchronized the rates at which our process and

         14  the RGGI process were supposed to proceed at.  Then

         15  we wouldn't have that difference.  Would that do

         16  anything to speak to some of the concerns that we

         17  have regarding some of the local processes and the

         18  regional processes being out of sync with one

         19  another?  Is there any synchronization that we could

         20  do that might help?

         21                 MR. DELANEY: I don't believe so, in

         22  the sense that to the extent we have rule making

         23  from DEC that has the force of law and is applied

         24  Statewide, it would apply to all New York City

         25  generators.  And if there's synchronization on the
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          2  schedule and the levels in New York City, I don't

          3  believe there would be any impact from that since

          4  you already have a Statewide mandate that is put in

          5  effect.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let's just trot

          7  out a little boogie man I guess.  Isn't at least

          8  theoretically possible that this won't happen, and

          9  I've been made aware that the Business Council of

         10  New York City opposes this effort, and will fight

         11  it. How sure are we that this is actually going to

         12  see the light of day?  When all is said and done.

         13                 MR. DELANEY: I'm under oath, I can't

         14  speak with certainty.  This is a future prospect,

         15  but I do think it's a material and a concrete one,

         16  particularly since the Governor has assumed a

         17  leadership role on it.  And DEC is now involved in

         18  the process.  So I think it's going to happen.  I

         19  think it's reasonable to believe that.  I recognize

         20  there is opposition in some quarters, but I expect

         21  that is true on every initiative that we face

         22  opposition.

         23                 MR. QUINIONES:  And if I could just

         24  add to that, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you could
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          2  just state your name for the record.

          3                 MR. QUINIONES: I'm Gil Quiniones, I'm

          4  the Senior Vice President of Energy and Telecom at

          5  EDC.  I think most of the stakeholders are

          6  optimistic that it's going to happen.  And that at

          7  some point later this year, or early next year,

          8  there will be some rule- making process that will

          9  begin at the New York State DEC.  And we look

         10  forward, and we hope that we can jointly and

         11  constructively participate in shaping the rule

         12  making and the final rules in that program.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.  I

         14  just want to recognize that in the latter part of

         15  your statement, where you, and I'm reading from your

         16  statement, where you "urge City Council to join us

         17  in helping craft a wider program that offers the

         18  best prospect of bringing about meaningful

         19  reductions in emissions".  As you know, we're

         20  working on another global warming bill, and we have

         21  high hopes for that, and we thank you for

         22  recognizing our efforts in other areas of the City

         23  with respect to greenhouse gases.

         24                 And before I turn it over to Council

         25  Member Vallone for questions, I have a little
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          2  tradition in my Committee.  Any time a word is used

          3  in testimony that has never been used before in any

          4  hearing, so you get the prize today for -- this is

          5  the sentence -- "any market created solely by the

          6  City would be highly illiquid". So this is the first

          7  time the word "illiquid" has appeared on the record

          8  in this Committee, so we're blazing new paths here.

          9  So thank you for that.

         10                 MR. DELANEY: Thank you for the

         11  recognition, Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do we have the

         13  little chatchka that goes with that?  We don't have

         14  it?  We didn't know we were -- we'll do the whole

         15  ceremony next time.  Thank you for that.

         16                 And I recognize Council Member

         17  Vallone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair.

         20                 And thank you for your testimony.  It

         21  seems to me your only real concern here is RGGI.

         22  RGGI is something -- you said RGGI could be a

         23  catalyst and we agree, but this is the catalyst. The

         24  bill that was originally in this bill here is the

         25  catalyst for RGGI.  And I will worry about RGGI when
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          2  it happens.  Right now, the earliest predictions for

          3  RGGI to happen in 2009, if nine states happen to

          4  agree to get their act together by then.  One of

          5  them being New York State.  New York State won't

          6  have its act together by 2009.  I can't imagine nine

          7  states doing it.

          8                 I will not sit by idly and let carbon

          9  dioxide come into our air and wait on nine states to

         10  take action.  We'll take action here.  And if RGGI

         11  happens, we'll worry about the preemption aspect

         12  then.  We'll conform what we need to conform then.

         13  But that's not a reason to not move forward with a

         14  bill of such worldwide significance.

         15                 So when you eliminate RGGI from your

         16  argument, you're left with the leakage factor?  And

         17  may jeopardize our competitive position.  The

         18  leakage factor, by the way, apparently is -- I'm

         19  reading your definition -- "the increased discharges

         20  likely from out- of- area sources when emission

         21  limits only apply to a particular localities".  And

         22  uses an example of the air in Queens which was

         23  tested and showed that it had a lot of pollution

         24  from other areas.  Which is true.  But Queens also

         25  had more particles than every other borough
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          2  combined.  That's not coming from anywhere else.

          3  That's coming from Queens.  That's coming from where

          4  the power is being created.  So the leakage factor

          5  is not one that should hold this bill up, number

          6  one.  And number two, if there's a leakage factor

          7  regarding the City, there's a leakage factor

          8  regarding the region.  Then the power plants move

          9  outside the region that's being controlled.  So

         10  that's not an argument.

         11                 The competitive position, I'm not

         12  sure what that means, so I wanted to give you a

         13  chance to see why we're going to stop this

         14  historical bill based on potentially jeopardizing

         15  our competitive position.  Could you please explain

         16  that  a little more?

         17                 MR. DELANEY: Yes.  I think what we

         18  had in mind in that portion of the testimony is that

         19  as the Synapse Report, which I know you're very

         20  familiar with, concerning Queens air quality

         21  indicated, the relative emissions in New York are

         22  far lower than those nationally.  And of course, we

         23  are in the air shed that is downwind from not only

         24  from New Jersey, our closes neighbor to the west,

         25  but perhaps more importantly, to Pennsylvania and
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          2  the coal plants that are both in Pennsylvania and

          3  the states beyond that in the Midwest.  And what I

          4  think we've tried to indicate is that we have a

          5  highly efficient system now, we have relatively

          6  lower CO2 emissions, and the only way to viably

          7  address this, we believe -- well ideally, it would

          8  be on a national level, as was done, as you know for

          9  SOx and for NOx  That apparently is not happening

         10  right now.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Absolutely.

         12                 MR. MALONEY: So we're in agreement.

         13  But clearly, that's the kind of scale you would like

         14  to see address this.  And as you know, be quite

         15  successful with sulfur dioxide and with other

         16  criteria pollutants.  In the absence of a national

         17  program, with the whole genesis of RGGI, you move

         18  the process, you move the ball, by having a critical

         19  mass of states, enough to make a difference in a

         20  large air shed as one that affects New York, and

         21  also to use that phrase, to lead by example.  And I

         22  understand in the Northwest, there's at least an

         23  earlier stage version of RGGI that's going on in the

         24  Northwest states, looking at addressing this in the

         25  absence of Federal action.
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          2                 But we believe it cannot be viably be

          3  addressed at the local level, and given the high

          4  efficiency that we have here, and the new plants

          5  that are coming on line, some of which not only add

          6  to aggregate load, which I know has been a concern

          7  of yours, but we keep the old ones running.  But

          8  some of those old ones are disappearing.  Waterside,

          9  as I mentioned, old Poletti will be going away to be

         10  replaced by one that has far lower emissions.  So we

         11  think that those steps are happening, and we don't

         12  want to disadvantage our citizens, placing a burden

         13  with the prospect of relatively low benefits to be

         14  achieved, given the realities of the air shed.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I understand

         16  what you said, I think we're in agreement about the

         17  catalyst situation.  You believe RGGI is a catalyst

         18  for the nation, I believe this is the catalyst for

         19  RGGI and then the nation.  And that's why we live in

         20  the greatest City in the world, we can do these

         21  things.  And be a catalyst.  I don't understand,

         22  again, I give you an opportunity to clarify how we

         23  would be jeopardized specifically, and I didn't hear

         24  anything, so we'll leave it at that.

         25                 You mentioned Poletti, and you
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          2  mentioned repowering, I want to discuss that with

          3  you a little bit.  You said, "KeySpan has reduced

          4  its rate of emissions through the recent expansion

          5  which allows" -- and you add, tellingly "relatively"

          6  to your testimony which says, "less use of the

          7  company's older generating facilities".  I look at

          8  with a critical eye at that.  Let me tell you the

          9  Poletti story, and why it's closing.

         10                 They came to our neighborhood, and

         11  they wanted to put a new power plant there.  After

         12  many requests for a meeting, they finally met with

         13  myself and Tony and others, this is NYPA now, the

         14  State agency, and wanted our approval for this new

         15  plant, which would be a 500 megawatt plant.  And

         16  they said, that by doing this, they could lower the

         17  output of the existing plant, which is an 835

         18  megawatt, and they said that we would get about 300

         19  megawatts at the old plant, which I didn't believe

         20  for a minute.  So I said to them, "You know what,

         21  we're not against new power plants.  If you need 500

         22  new megawatts, and 300 old megawatts, build a bigger

         23  one. I'll get the community behind you.  Come in,

         24  build an 800 megawatt new one, just close this old,

         25  filthy one down.  One of the dirtiest in the entire
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          2  nation.  They never came back.  Because that was

          3  never their goal, to do 800, because they wanted to

          4  use both.

          5                 We sued them. Probably would not have

          6  been successful, but other than the fact that Pataki

          7  ran for office, again, and during the campaign,

          8  agreed to close Poletti.  And of course he gave

          9  himself a few outs so we all have to be very

         10  vigilant to make sure that this actually happens.

         11                 But it was a major victory for

         12  C.H.O.K.E. And for some others who were involved in

         13  this to get Poletti closed.  But you've got to be

         14  very careful when they talk about using the older

         15  plants less.  Just get rid of the old plants, if

         16  that's what you need.

         17                 But you mentioned that the City is

         18  working to, or the Task Force recommended that we do

         19  more repowering. And I couldn't agree more.  How are

         20  you actually getting out there and making sure that

         21  these power plants that exist now do repowering?

         22                 MR. QUINIONES: The Task Force,

         23  Council Member Vallone, actually recommended a

         24  combination of solutions, because we think that's

         25  what's needed.  In the end, we're only going to be
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          2  able to retire older, more polluting plants if we

          3  have more new resources.  State of the art

          4  resources.  In the Task Force report, first and

          5  foremost, we said we need to harvest as much energy

          6  efficiency, what we call distributed resources,

          7  which include energy efficiency, clean on- site

          8  generation, and peak load management, and build more

          9  high performing buildings.  We need to do as much as

         10  possible in that area.  That's the first thing.

         11                 The second step is to encourage

         12  repowering.  And one of the things that the City is

         13  doing, is leveraging its load.  New York City, we

         14  account for about 10 percent of the total

         15  electricity load of the City, and working with the

         16  New York Power Authority, we currently have an RFP

         17  for our new electricity requirements in the future.

         18  And in that RFP, included in that RFP will be

         19  opportunities for plants, existing plants to repower

         20  and bit that new output in the process.  Now the

         21  RFP, that they're going to be selected is a public

         22  procurement process.  But the Administration made

         23  sure that proposals that are consistent with our

         24  land use and our environmental goals will be given

         25  extra points in the evaluation process.
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          2                 We also need to build more

          3  transmission lines.  We agree with you.  We agree

          4  with you that we have very limited real estate here

          5  in New York City, and certain areas are already

          6  burdened with a lot of power plants, like in your

          7  district.  And therefore, we need to look at more

          8  transmission lines, or more projects.  Power plants

          9  may be in New Jersey with an extension cord into New

         10  York.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Can I just

         12  jump in here one second?  Because there is a power

         13  plant in New Jersey with extension cords to New

         14  York, and rather than give the Con Ed contract that

         15  I spoke to you about before to that company, which

         16  bid a cheaper amount than Astoria Energy did, our

         17  wonderful Governor and the siting board decided to

         18  give the contract to Astoria Energy which isn't even

         19  built yet.  So we're on the same page here.  But

         20  this is what we're fighting against.  We could have

         21  given this contract to the New Jersey company, and

         22  transmitted it to us, but they didn't.  They decided

         23  to build a new power plant and give it to a company

         24  in Astoria.

         25                 We're on the same page, but in
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          2  addition, the repowering situation, another company

          3  that bid on that has a representative here, Reliant.

          4    Also my district.  They've just been sold, as of

          5  yesterday.  And they have a huge repowering project

          6  in the works.  But they needed this contract from

          7  the State to get it done, basically.  And they

          8  didn't get it either.  So the State could have

          9  picked New Jersey energy, it could have picked

         10  energy from a plant that would be repowered and get

         11  rid of the old generators and put new ones in.  But

         12  instead, they picked a plant that's not even built

         13  yet.  So this is what we're fighting against, and

         14  what you're saying makes perfect sense.  Just be

         15  aware of what's actually happening on a State level.

         16                 MR. QUINIONES: And just to pick up on

         17  your past question of doing a local implementation

         18  of a cap and trade program.  One thing also that we

         19  need to recognize is when we think about our energy

         20  issues, there are really three levers that move all

         21  at the same time: Environmental issues, which what

         22  we're talking about today, which we're trying to

         23  affect.  But once we engage that aspect, there are

         24  other two levers that move simultaneously.  We need

         25  to think about our reliability, and meeting our load
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          2  growth.  As you know, this years, and this past

          3  Summer, we basically broke all records in terms of

          4  electricity usage.  Whether you look at it from a

          5  Sunday, or a Monday, a weekday or a weekend, we had

          6  tremendous amount of load growth in our area.

          7                 And we need to think about again, we

          8  can only retire existing plants if we have excess

          9  capacity.  So we need to think about reliability.

         10  We need to think about also, prices.  You know, our

         11  prices are -- we're only second to Hawaii.  Because

         12  they have to bring fuel into the island because of

         13  the expense of electricity.  But we have to watch

         14  out.  We're trying to find the right balance on all

         15  three when we're thinking about energy policy.     In

         16  a cap and trade program, and if you look at what was

         17  done with SOx and NOx at the Federal Level, it

         18  worked because there are a lot of players, meaning

         19  there a lot of allowances available, and a lot of

         20  players that can actually trade allowances to each

         21  other.  In New York City, because we only have three

         22  major power plant owners here that are going to

         23  subject to this, and I would introduce that word

         24  again by the way, I think from me, that we will have

         25  a very illiquid market, meaning that there's not
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          2  enough people, and not enough allowances to trade.

          3  You only have three people, and very little

          4  allowances that can be traded.  So from an

          5  operational perspective, a cap and trade program

          6  with three doesn't really work.

          7                 Also, when the leakage factor.  What

          8  happens, is when you apply a cap and trade in a

          9  small locality like ours, what eventually is going

         10  to happen is we're going to -- power plants outside

         11  New York City will be selling more into New York.

         12  And one of the issues is that we have fixed

         13  transmission capacity.  We can only bring 5,000

         14  megawatts in here.

         15                 And another thing that we have to

         16  think about is an over reliance on natural gas.

         17  Just yesterday, I checked the prices for natural

         18  gas, they're $14 for MMBTU, and typically, a few

         19  years ago, they're two and a half.  And we don't

         20  have enough natural gas pipelines, to be very

         21  frankly, in New York City as we speak.  And we're

         22  working on that right now.  We're seeing how to

         23  increase natural gas into New York City.  Unlike NOx

         24  and SOx, CO2, there's no technology that you can put

         25  on a stack, a scrubber or whatever, that would
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          2  reduce the O2.  The way you do it, if you build more

          3  state of the art, and energy- efficiency plants and

          4  have natural gas as fuel.  A lot of those issues we

          5  have to think about.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I agree.  The

          7  problem with the regulation, what happened is we

          8  need to retire all the plants, but we need new ones.

          9    Which is true.  But the new ones are owned by

         10  different companies than the older ones, and the

         11  older ones are not going to just say, Okay, we'll

         12  retire now because you have new ones.  They're out

         13  there making money.  So that doesn't really -- it's

         14  a very difficult thing to accomplish, having them

         15  retire. Which is why the system doesn't work

         16                 The other problem -- one of the other

         17  problems with deregulation is what you said, the

         18  illiquidity of the market. That's the second word, I

         19  think.  Because there are only three companies doing

         20  this, and one of the reasons that is, is because for

         21  some reason, NYPA is still part of the process.  So

         22  these private companies are competing against a

         23  public company which the whole system doesn't make

         24  any sense, but their experts are going to come down

         25  and testify about this later on.
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          2                 You mention new plants.  Do you

          3  happen to know how many new generating units the

          4  City will be seeing in the next say, 10 years or so?

          5    How many are on line?

          6                 MR. QUINIONES: Not in the next 10

          7  years, but we know of two that are going to come on

          8  line very soon.  January, 2006, we expect the new

          9  NYPA/Poletti combined cycle plant --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Which one is

         11  that?  Oh, sorry.  That's Poletti.

         12                 MR. QUINIONES: And according to the

         13  stipulation, some time between 2008 and 2010, that's

         14  the time when the retirement of the old Poletti will

         15  occur.  And --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I look

         17  forward to working with you, to make sure that that

         18  actually happens.  Expect my call.

         19                 MR. QUINIONES: And the next plant

         20  that we know that's coming on line is what you just

         21  mentioned, the FCS Astoria, which is scheduled to be

         22  on line in May of 2006.  A total of 1,000 megawatts.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And there are

         24  no other proposals out there that you know of?

         25                 MR. QUINIONES: Well, the third one
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          2  will be the RFP that the New York Power Authority is

          3  conducting on behalf of what we call the Southeast

          4  New York Governmental customers, which includes the

          5  City Housing Authority, MTA/Port Authority.  So that

          6  will be the next project that we know that's in the

          7  horizon. That's also for 500 megawatts.  And that

          8  can either be a transmission or generation.

          9                 As I had mentioned, in that specific

         10  RFP, that we helped craft, we will look at projects

         11  that are -- favorably at project that are consistent

         12  with our land use and environmental goals.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You should look

         14  at projects that are located in Canada, that would

         15  be favorable to our environmental goals.  But we'll

         16  talk about that.

         17                 My last question, because I know the

         18  Chair has more questions.  We're going to continue

         19  to see this through.  And I understand you have

         20  opposition to it, but if you had to make changes to

         21  the bill to make it better, any amendments that you

         22  think would help you to administer this bill down

         23  the road, what would they be?

         24                 MR. QUINIONES: My answer is probably

         25  best stated in this way.  The RGGI process has been
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          2  going on for two years, with a lot of work behind

          3  it, modeling, looking at all the costs and the

          4  benefits, stakeholder input from multiple

          5  stakeholders.  And the ball has been rolling, and

          6  now we hear, when we're hoping that the compact

          7  among the nine states are forthcoming, and rule

          8  making can happen, my recommendation is that really,

          9  we jointly and constructively put our pressure to

         10  make sure that that happens, and then, once they

         11  start the rule- making process, jointly weigh in and

         12  make sure that it is developed in a way that is fair

         13  and equitable to all New Yorkers.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay.  In

         15  addition to waiting on RGGI, if we move forward with

         16  this bill, what changes should we make in it that

         17  would assist you to implement it better?

         18                 This is your chance, because that's

         19  what hearings are for.  After this, we go forward

         20  with the bill and you're going to be stuck

         21  implementing it.

         22                 MR. QUINIONES: As we stated, we urge

         23  you to join us in the RGGI, and pursue our goals in

         24  that venue rather than in the bill.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: We agree,
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          2  RGGI is a great thing, and we will join you in

          3  trying to get that done.  I think this is the best

          4  way to get that done.  Every time the City takes

          5  action -- look at the smoking bill, look at so many

          6  others.  The State takes action after us.  And this

          7  is the best way to make sure they do it right away.

          8  And once they see that we've done it here, and we

          9  have the political will to do it here.

         10                 If you do have any suggestions on

         11  changes feel free to contact anyone here on this

         12  Committee, or myself.  We look forward to working

         13  with you all.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         15  Councilman Vallone.

         16                 I just had a quick follow up.  Many

         17  of the questions that Peter asked I had on my mind

         18  as well.

         19                 In regards to the issue of leakage,

         20  and I know that you've discussed earlier to already

         21  answer this in some form. Pardon me for belaboring

         22  it, but how is the nine- state RGGI coalition

         23  planning to address leakage on the regional level.

         24  And can't we do the same thing here?  Because no

         25  matter what size piece of geography you're talking
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          2  about, you're always going to be dealing with

          3  leakage.  And so, how are they doing it better than

          4  the nine- state coalition, and can't we do the same

          5  thing here?

          6                 MR. QUINIONES: It's probably one of

          7  the last areas that they're tackling right now.  And

          8  the other people who are going to testify today are

          9  also part of the RGGI process and can probably

         10  answer some -- one way is to look at other offsets.

         11  And I know that there is going to be a process to

         12  track leakage while at the early stages of

         13  implementation and to see what other changes can be

         14  done.  Those are the two that I know of, maybe the

         15  other people who are going to testify today can add

         16  to that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I just want

         18  to jump in, I was just informed that --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Go ahead, I was

         20  just going to recognize you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: We go way

         22  back.  That we'd actually like to pointed to this

         23  work that you mentioned that's been going on regards

         24  to RGGI.  Because as far as we know, and maybe we're

         25  wrong, there's only a two- page document on a
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          2  website. You said there was all this work that's

          3  already been done, I'd like to take a look at it.

          4  Do you know where I'd be able to find that?

          5                 MR. QUINIONES: Actually, if you go to

          6  the DEC site, and even in I think, I'm trying to

          7  make sure I'm correct on the website, the

          8  www.rggi.org --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: That's the

         10  one with the two page document.

         11                 MR. QUINIONES: No.  There's actually

         12  one click down where you would see all the documents

         13  submitted by the stakeholders and all the documents

         14  submitted by the working groups in the RGGI. A

         15  pretty extensive library of documents and comments

         16  and modeling results and analysis.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'll take a

         18  look.  Documents submitted are a different thing

         19  than documents that have been arrived at.  But I'll

         20  take a look.  Thank you.

         21                 MR. DELANEY: The DEC's site, also Mr.

         22  Vallone has some documents, particularly documents

         23  that were distributed on September the 12th,

         24  including some text and Powerpoint descriptions of

         25  how they anticipate the timeline would go forward.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          3  Thank you, Councilman Vallone, and thanks to our

          4  panel.  Mr. Delaney. Mr. Quiniones, and Mr.

          5  Dickinson.  We appreciate your being here today and

          6  we look forward to keeping you engaged as we go

          7  forward with this bill.  Thank you.

          8                 Ashok Gupta, of the National

          9  Resources Defense Council.

         10                 Mr. Gupta, thank you for being here.

         11  I appreciate all your hard work over the years on

         12  this bill and on so many other things that we've

         13  been able to do together.  And we appreciate your

         14  being here.  Donna will give the oath, and then you

         15  can proceed.

         16                 MS. DE CONSTANZO: Please raise your

         17  right hand.  In the testimony that you are about to

         18  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         19  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         20                 MR. GUPTA: I do.

         21                 MS. DE CONSTANZO: Thank you.

         22                 MR. GUPTA: Your welcome.

         23                 Well thank you very much, thank you

         24  for all your hard work and it's always a pleasure to

         25  work with you and be here. Chairman Gennaro and
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          2  Council Member Vallone, we've all been at this for a

          3  long time, and it's really a pleasure to see that we

          4  continue to try to move this bill forward.  It has

          5  been a long journey, and hopefully, with today's

          6  hearings, and some additional changes might need be

          7  made, we can actually move forward with this bill

          8  this year.  So we are strongly supportive of this

          9  bill, and look forward to working with you make this

         10  happen.

         11                 My name, for the record is Ashok

         12  Gupta, I'm the Director of the Air and Energy

         13  Programs for NRDC, Natural Resources Defense

         14  Council.  We're headquartered here in New York City,

         15  and I've been here 35 years.  And we at present,

         16  have over 650,000 members around the country.  The

         17  power plant issues, global warming, energy

         18  efficiency are all issues we deeply care about and

         19  have worked on for those full 35 years.

         20                 I also want to mention other bills,

         21  of course the Green Building Bill that you worked on

         22  recently that got passed and signed and is going to

         23  be very, very important.  It's going to be a great

         24  help to the City in terms of achieving its

         25  environmental goals.  And the other global warming
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          2  bill, 661, also to help the City reduce its own

          3  global warming pollution is also something we're

          4  hopeful will pass shortly, and is something that is

          5  needed and we look forward to working with you on

          6  that as well.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I agree.

          8                 MR. GUPTA: It's also important for me

          9  to say that I think the panel before me, Gil

         10  Quiniones and his colleagues, have done an excellent

         11  job as part of the energy policy for the City. I

         12  serve on the Energy Task Force, I think many of the

         13  recommendations that came out of the Task Force are

         14  going to be extremely helpful in achieving the goals

         15  set forth in the bill that we're talking about

         16  today.  Basically, our view is that if all the

         17  things that are in the recommendations in the Task

         18  Force happen, the City's emissions will decline and

         19  the City's energy costs will decline.  Because what

         20  the Task Force is recommending, is bringing in new

         21  clean supply to market, and it's talking about doing

         22  more on energy efficiency.  If you do those two

         23  things, on the supply and demand side, you will have

         24  both lower prices and lower emissions.

         25                 And I think what this bill does, is
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          2  to guarantee and lock in that the emissions will go

          3  down.  This bill was originally drafted as a way to

          4  say, nobody is opposing new power plants, as long as

          5  we know that emissions are declining over all.

          6                 Why should New York City public take

          7  the risk that doing all the right things will

          8  actually lower emissions?  As Council Member Vallone

          9  was saying.  New plants can result in emissions

         10  going down, but we want to make sure that they do.

         11  And what this bill does, is provide that backstop

         12  and that guarantee of things that should happen if

         13  we do all the things we want to do and are

         14  recommended in the Energy Task Force.

         15                 So I don't think there's any

         16  disagreement on what we need to do to get there,

         17  this just shifts the risk in terms of what will be

         18  the final result in terms of air quality.  This is

         19  about CO2 emissions, this bill, but as we all know,

         20  if CO2 emissions are declining, the other pollutants

         21  will decline as well.  It's important from public

         22  health and other perspectives to have those benefits

         23  as well, from lower CO2 emissions.

         24                 Just a few quick points.  On global

         25  warming, I think you'll probably not hear from
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          2  anyone today that the science isn't settled.

          3  Everybody knows that the problem is real, we need to

          4  act. We need to act soon.  And the sooner we act,

          5  the easier it's going to be to deal with it.  The

          6  longer we wait, the harder it's going to be, the

          7  more expensive it's going to be, and the more

          8  destructive it is going to be.  So our view is that

          9  the City moving forward is going to help the State

         10  and other states, and other cities and the nation

         11  move forward.  Action is what's needed, and the

         12  sooner we can start, the easier it's going to be.

         13  And it's very important to move at this point.  And

         14  we can talk about the liquidity of the market and

         15  leakage, and those are issues that can clearly be

         16  addressed.  They have to be addressed in RGGI, they

         17  can be addressed in a City- only bill.  We can talk

         18  about it, but those are yes, issues, but issues not

         19  saying don't do this, those are issues that say

         20  let's deal with those and move forward.  Otherwise,

         21  we're going to always be not doing anything, and

         22  that's not something any of us can agree to.

         23                 The second point I want to make is

         24  the technologies to reduce those emissions exist

         25  today.  It's not about some future technology.  And,
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          2  have existed for 20 years.  New combined cycled gas

          3  power plant technology.  More efficient air

          4  conditioning, lighting, co- generation plants.  This

          5  is known technology that we know, if we put out in

          6  the marketplace, we'll have significant benefits,

          7  economically and environmentally.  And we have

          8  chosen because of the policies we have in place not

          9  to move forward.

         10                 And what a bill like this does, is it

         11  puts pressure to move forward with the solutions and

         12  the technologies that we have available to reduce

         13  those emissions.

         14                 So the science of global warming is

         15  certain.  The technologies to solve the problem

         16  exist, and we just need the right policies to bring

         17  those technologies to market.

         18                 This bill, by itself, won't be enough

         19  to bring all those technologies to market, but it's

         20  going to be helpful.

         21                 So, we need to other things as well,

         22  in terms of encouraging, through financing and long-

         23  term contracts, and other policies, building of new

         24  generation, and many other things in terms of energy

         25  efficiency.  But again, the technologies exist, we
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          2  need policies to bring the technology to market, to

          3  provide both an economic and an environmental

          4  benefit for the City.

          5                 Third point, again hitting home on

          6  that issue of economic versus environmental

          7  tradeoffs.  Everything we do to reduce emissions

          8  here, is about using less fuel.  Being more

          9  efficient.  And as you heard earlier, natural gas

         10  prices are going through the roof.  Oil prices are

         11  going through the roof. Electricity costs are very

         12  high now.  The reason is because fuel prices are

         13  very high.  Anything we can do in terms of being

         14  more efficient in our use of energy, and in our

         15  power plant will reduce those fuel inputs, and

         16  therefore, reduce costs of energy and lower

         17  emissions.

         18                 So we do not see the tradeoff between

         19  lower emissions and lower cost energy.  If you're

         20  smart about how you use energy, both in our power

         21  plants and in our homes and offices, we'll be using

         22  less fuel that is very expensive, that is actually

         23  what's causing us to pay higher bills right now.

         24                 Think of this as lowering emissions

         25  means being more efficient.  Being more efficient
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          2  means using less fuel that is at this point, very,

          3  very expensive.  And that's what people are paying

          4  for.

          5                 New York City does have, compared to

          6  the rest of the country, much cleaner power plants.

          7  Because we don't allow coal burning, and yes, we are

          8  using natural gas and oil.  And my view is that we

          9  therefore, have a competitive advantage in terms of

         10  having a national program go into effect on global

         11  warming.  If and when we get a program nationally,

         12  New York City will be in a much better place.  It's

         13  in our interest to get a national program out there

         14  as soon as possible.  That's why you see the City of

         15  New York, you'll hear from KeySpan say that they

         16  support a national program, because we will be

         17  winners when there's a national program, because we

         18  already have a competitive advantage.

         19                 Doing more is also going to continue

         20  to give us a further competitive advantage in the

         21  marketplace when there is a national program.

         22  Nobody here believes that there won't be a national

         23  program, it's a question of will it be two years,

         24  three years, five years?  It will happen, any

         25  investment we make now will only benefit us going
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          2  forward in terms of that competitive advantage as

          3  New York City moves forward.

          4                 So I think we should not think of

          5  this as, it's an early mover advantage, is what we

          6  would call it.  And we already have one, we should

          7  keep expanding on that as we go forward.

          8                 It's always about leadership.  We

          9  think New York City has lead, unclear air issues

         10  long before anybody else did.  We believe that New

         11  York City's leading on this is going to be helpful

         12  to keep the same process moving forward.  And we'll

         13  also encourage many other cities around the country

         14  to also move forward, because the cities are ready

         15  to move.  They're not waiting for the Federal

         16  Government.  So the question is going to be really

         17  how to get as many players moving forward in the

         18  next two, three, five years, so we can create the

         19  momentum for a national program as soon as possible.

         20

         21                 I think there are specific issue we

         22  can talk about in terms of concerns that people have

         23  raised, but I think overall, our view is that on the

         24  big issues, this is about getting ahead of the

         25  problem, it's playing toward our competitive
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          2  advantage, it's lowering our energy costs while we

          3  lower emissions, and it's time to move forward.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.  The

          6  one question that I was going to ask was a featured

          7  question, which is going to be about to speak to the

          8  previous panel's assertion that us acting locally

          9  was going to upset or impair, or do something bad

         10  with regard to the regional RGGI compact that's

         11  trying to move forward. But you've kind of answered

         12  that to my satisfaction in your statement.  So I

         13  don't really have any questions.

         14                 MR. GUPTA: Can I just say one quick

         15  thing?  Just to supplement what I said.  I think one

         16  reason why you want to move forward with this, even

         17  if there is RGGI, is that with RGGI, --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That was my

         19  question.

         20                 MR. GUPTA: Okay, want to ask it?  Is

         21  because if you have a RGGI program in place, people

         22  will then regionally look for where best to lower

         23  emissions, and they may not chose to want to lower

         24  emissions further in New York City.  They may chose

         25  to build a new coal gasification plant in Upstate
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          2  New York, they may chose to do something else.  We

          3  will be sellers of credits, and whether we would

          4  chose or not chose to further reduce our emissions,

          5  is unclear.  So if our goal here is to also cause

          6  investment and building of bringing new technology

          7  to market here, this bill will help do that, and

          8  will also actually help with the leakage problem in

          9  my view, and we'll see if KeySpan agrees with this,

         10  because I think right now, when KeySpan looks to --

         11  even now -- wants to build a clean power plant in

         12  New York City, they are competing against dirtier

         13  power from outside of the City.  And we want,

         14  actually to encourage cleaner generation here than

         15  buying dirtier power from outside.  For the same

         16  reason that Gil was talking about because of the air

         17  currents, we get all the pollution anyway.

         18                 So if we want to encourage cleaner

         19  generation in the City, instead of buying dirtier

         20  power, we may be better off  having our own, more

         21  restrictive air regime as a way to keep air cleaner

         22  here.  And so I think you want to look at it in

         23  terms of, I don't see this as being inconsistent

         24  with RGGI at all.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: You answered

          3  the question I had, so let me ask you one last

          4  thing.  We both agree, we all agree I think, we

          5  don't wait on RGGI.  No reason for that.  In fact,

          6  it's an advantage to do it before RGGI.

          7                 We both agree that leakage is not a

          8  problem.  Saying that on Cable TV, that's a strange

          9  thing to say, leakage is not a problem.  The one

         10  thing we didn't talk about was the illiquidity of

         11  the market, and how they mentioned that that would

         12  be a problem. Do you have an opinion on that?

         13                 MR. GUPTA: I think again, that it is

         14  an issue that we can deal with.  And the question is

         15  it hasn't been properly dealt with in this draft.  I

         16  think certainly allowing for trading by New York

         17  City power plants with other jurisdictions that cap

         18  their emissions of global warming, I mean, it could

         19  even be with Canada or Europe.  There's no reason

         20  why you can't create a more liquid market by others

         21  who have chosen to regulate CO2 emissions. So that's

         22  something again, I believe can be corrected as a

         23  problem, if people believe that that is a huge

         24  issue.  I would think its an issue, but not a huge

         25  one.  But it can be addressed.  So our view on
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          2  issues that people are raising, let's figure out how

          3  to address this rather than say it's a problem that

          4  means we shouldn't move forward.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: You heard

          6  that I gave them an opportunity to address them, but

          7  they did not take that.

          8                 Let me thank you again for the work

          9  you've done on this, and in the past.  The lawsuit

         10  to help shut Poletti, you were a great help in that

         11  also.  So thank you for all the work you've done on

         12  behalf of us here on this Committee, and the people

         13  of New York City.

         14                 MR. GUPTA: You're welcome.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         16  Ashok.

         17                 Our next panel, Robert Teetz, of

         18  KeySpan.  And Liam Baker, representing Reliant

         19  Energy.

         20                 Together.  We want to bring people

         21  together.

         22                 Plus, I have to -- when you have a

         23  panel of witnesses, it kind of creates the illusion

         24  of moving faster, and I've got a lot of witnesses,

         25  and so we're trying to --
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          2                 Donna is going to swear you in.

          3                 MS. DE CONSTANZO: Please raise your

          4  right hand.  In the testimony that you are about to

          5  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          6  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          7                 MR. TEETZ: I do.

          8                 MR. BAKER: I do.

          9                 MS. DE COSTANZO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.  It's

         11  a pleasure to have you both here.  You testified

         12  before the Committee many times. Happy to have you

         13  here again. I guess without further adieu, I'll ask

         14  you to in whatever order you wish, to do your

         15  statements and then we'll ask questions.

         16                 I have a statement from Mr. Teetz.

         17  Do you have a statement, Liam?  Okay, the Sergeant

         18  has it.  Okay, fine.

         19                 Mr. TEETZ: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20  I appreciate the opportunity.  Good afternoon, Mr.

         21  Chairman and members of the Committee.  My name is

         22  Robert Teetz.  I am Director of Environmental

         23  Engineering and Compliance at KeySpan.  We

         24  appreciate this opportunity to present constructive

         25  input into the process of addressing carbon dioxide
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          2  emissions from electric generating facilities.

          3                 KeySpan is the largest natural gas

          4  distribution company in the Northeast, serving some

          5  2.5 million customers in New York City, Long Island,

          6  and New England.  KeySpan presently owns

          7  approximately 2,500 megawatts of electric power

          8  generating capacity in New York City at our Far

          9  Rockaway and Ravenswood power stations.

         10                 KeySpan recognizes and agrees with

         11  the Committee that it is time to address global

         12  climate change.  We have long advocated mandatory

         13  CO2 reductions in the power generating sector on a

         14  national basis through the Carper Bill in the US

         15  Senate.

         16                 In addition, we have been an active

         17  in participating in the Regional Greenhouse Gas

         18  Initiative process initiated by Governor Pataki, and

         19  supported by the governors of eight other states in

         20  the Northeast.  These states have recently proposed

         21  the first ever regional CO2 cap and trade program

         22  covering power plants in the US, including those

         23  located in New York City.

         24                 KeySpan supports the RGGI program

         25  proposal and we have submitted suggestions to
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          2  enhance its implementation.  We have also been doing

          3  our part with regard to our own emissions. KeySpan

          4  has worked to reduce  CO2 emissions which are now

          5  some 15 percent lower than they were in 1990.

          6                 While we commend the Committee's

          7  interests in addressing global climate change, we

          8  believe that the RGGI effort, and not a separate New

          9  York City effort involving far fewer, and quite

         10  frankly, cleaner plants, is the most effective way

         11  to implement a cap and trade program to reduce power

         12  plant CO2 emissions.  Accordingly, we encourage the

         13  Council to support the RGGI proposal.

         14                 The following comments will hopefully

         15  demonstrate why a national or regional approach to

         16  CO2 reduction will be more effective than addressing

         17  global climate change on the local level.

         18                 A local New York City bill to curb

         19  CO2 emissions really aims at the wrong target.  New

         20  York City generating facilities are more carbon

         21  efficient than many plants in the Northeast, and

         22  most plants throughout the rest of the country. They

         23  also emit far fewer SO2 and NOx.  This is because

         24  New York City plants are fueled by either natural

         25  gas or low sulfur oil. Depending on the plant, these

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  fuels emit 20 percent to 60 percent less CO2 than

          3  coal plants, which dominate the electric energy

          4  supply in the U.S.

          5                 The bill proposes a cap on CO2

          6  emissions from New York City power plants for two

          7  years followed by a five percent reduction every two

          8  years thereafter, with no apparent stop point other

          9  than an allowance price indicator of $20 per ton.

         10  These are very aggressive reductions from already

         11  relatively low levels which may not be achievable

         12  through a localized cap and trade program in a City

         13  in which economic activity and electric load is

         14  expected to continue to rise each year.  The bill's

         15  premise that CO2 emissions will decrease over time

         16  as new, efficient plants are built and older plants

         17  are made more efficient, may not be accurate.  Such

         18  efficiency improvements, while desirable, will only

         19  curb the rate of growth of CO2 emissions, not

         20  necessarily reverse them, because electric demand is

         21  expected to climb year after year.  Thus, even under

         22  a reduced rate of growth, a hard cap on total

         23  emissions will ultimately be reached and all new

         24  energy supplies will have to be imported from

         25  outside of New York City, jeopardizing electric
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          2  reliability.

          3                 Since there is currently no tail pipe

          4  control technology available for CO2, first efforts

          5  to comply will involve an over reliance on natural

          6  gas in lieu of low sulfur oil consumption.  At

          7  current oil/gas price differentials, this will

          8  increase production costs on the order of 30

          9  percent, which would have to be passed on to

         10  consumers.  The loss of fuel diversity can also

         11  result in lower electric system reliability and

         12  higher gas prices for residential and commercial gas

         13  heating customers.

         14                 The $20 per ton allowance price limit

         15  will be reached very quickly since a small cap and

         16  trade market is not conducive to liquidity in

         17  trading.  A $20 per ton allowance price could result

         18  in an increase in the wholesale price of energy of

         19  approximately $15 per megawatt hour, or about  20

         20  percent.

         21                 A New York City- only cap and trade

         22  program will worsen existing competitive energy

         23  price imbalances that will foster leakage, the

         24  import of energy from outside New York City,

         25  generated at units not covered by the bill.  Such
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          2  energy sources are higher emitting than those within

          3  New York City, and thus could actually result in

          4  greater CO2, NOx, SO2, and particulate emissions on

          5  a regional basis.  Such emissions will drift into

          6  New York City from upwind sources and could actually

          7  worsen New York City air quality.  Leakage will also

          8  result in New York City ratepayer dollars flowing

          9  out of the City.

         10                 The continuous five percent CO2

         11  reduction every two years without floor could

         12  actually discourage new, modern units from being

         13  built because of uncertainty as to whether such

         14  units will be able to comply through the entire

         15  investment lifetime. Costs to operate such new units

         16  will increase since they will have to purchase CO2

         17  allowances under the 10 percent allowance set aside

         18  proposed by the bill.  Who would finance a new plant

         19  given such uncertainty and how many New York City

         20  construction jobs will be lost if they must be built

         21  elsewhere?

         22                 The bill exempts generating units

         23  whose rates are regulated by the New York Public

         24  Service Commission.  There would appear to be no

         25  rational basis for such a provision clearly aimed to
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          2  exempt Con Ed's New York City plants.

          3                 Rather than moving this bill forward,

          4  KeySpan respectfully suggests that the City Council

          5  join us in addressing global climate change by

          6  supporting national efforts to curb CO2 emissions

          7  from all combustion sources, and endorse the current

          8  nine- state Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative.

          9  This will achieve broader CO2 reductions than a more

         10  narrowly focused New York City approach.

         11                 In addition, we recommend that the

         12  Council:

         13                 Number one, support the siting,

         14  licensing, and construction of new, high efficiency,

         15  low emitting generating units within New York City.

         16  Such units will displace generation from older, less

         17  efficient units, help stabilize regional CO2

         18  emissions, and contribute to the success of the RGGI

         19  program.

         20                 We also suggest that they discourage

         21  the construction of additional transmission tie

         22  lines designed to tap high emitting coal- fired

         23  generation sources in upwind states whose emissions

         24  drift into New York City.

         25                 We would like you to encourage
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          2  conservation efforts that will reduce the rate of

          3  growth in electric demand and thereby also reduce

          4  the growth of CO2 emissions.

          5                 And lastly, we would encourage the

          6  use of lower carbon fuels such as natural gas in

          7  residential, commercial, and fleet applications

          8  including the City's buses, sanitation trucks, and

          9  other vehicles and facilities.

         10                 Thank you for your kind attention,

         11  and I look forward to working with you on this bill.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Teetz.  We'll just hear Mr. Baker's statements then

         14  Peter and I have comments.

         15                 MR. BAKER: Hi.  Good afternoon.  My

         16  name is Liam Baker, Greenberg Traurig, on behalf of

         17  Reliant Energy.

         18                 On behalf of Reliant Energy, I thank

         19  Chairman James Gennaro and the Council members on

         20  the Committee on Environmental Protection for the

         21  opportunity to speak before you today.

         22                 Reliant Energy currently owns and

         23  operates the Astoria Generating Station, the Gowanus

         24  Gas Turbines, and the Narrows Gas Turbines

         25  generating facilities.  The plants are located in
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          2  Astoria, Queens and Sunset Park, Brooklyn, and are

          3  capable of supplying approximately 20 percent of the

          4  electricity needed by New York City on a peak demand

          5  day.  These three electric generating facilities

          6  would be affected by the proposed legislation.

          7                 On Monday, October 3, 2005, Reliant

          8  Energy announced an agreement to sell these three

          9  generating facilities to an investor group led by

         10  Madison Dearborn Partners and US Power Generating

         11  Company.  The transaction is subject of certain

         12  regulatory approvals, including expiration of the

         13  waiting period under the Hart- Scott- Rodino

         14  Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, approval of the

         15  Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and the

         16  approval of the New York State Public Service

         17  Commission.  The transaction is expected to close in

         18  the first quarter of 2006.  As of today, however,

         19  Reliant Energy is the owner of these power plants

         20  and remains interested in the Council's proposed CO2

         21  legislation.

         22                 Reliant Energy operates its power

         23  plants guided by a straightforward corporate

         24  philosophy.  Reliant Energy's corporate mission is

         25  to create a portfolio of premier generating
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          2  facilities that provide competitively priced

          3  wholesale electricity, while demonstrating our

          4  environmental stewardship to the communities in

          5  which we reside.  Satisfying New York City's growing

          6  electricity demand presents unique challenges to the

          7  electric power industry, lawmakers, and local

          8  communities.  While few can dispute the growth in

          9  New York's electric power demand and the need for

         10  more production capacity, care must be exercised

         11  that this growth is not accompanied by unacceptable

         12  impacts to New York's air, water, or land resources.

         13                 The proposed legislation, which is

         14  the subject of today's hearing, is an approach in

         15  which the Council seeks to encourage the electric

         16  power industry to improve power plant operating

         17  efficiency.  However, the proposed legislation, in

         18  its present form, poses problems for competitive

         19  suppliers in New York City.  First, this proposal

         20  will increase the cost of generating electricity and

         21  generator owners would have no recourse but to pass

         22  these costs through to the consumers.  Second, we

         23  believe that regulatory solutions do not send proper

         24  signals to accomplish the Council's goal and are

         25  particularly ill suited for such a small geographic
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          2  area.

          3                 Rather, we encourage the Council to

          4  take an incentive- based approach towards reducing

          5  CO2 emissions, instead of the punitive approach of

          6  this legislation.  Such an approach could provide

          7  access to low- cost financing for construction

          8  costs, or preferential treatment for generators

          9  competing for long- term energy contracts.  Reliant

         10  Energy takes no position as to the authority of the

         11  New York City Council to enact the legislation.

         12                 Lastly, within the scope of the

         13  legislative proposal, we respectfully question the

         14  Council's decision to completely exempt any

         15   "electric generating unit when the rates for the

         16  sale of electricity produced by such electric

         17  generating unit are subject to the jurisdiction of

         18  the New York State Public Service Commission".  To

         19  the best of our knowledge, this exemption would

         20  apply only to the generating units of the

         21  Consolidated Edison Company of New York.  Most of

         22  these exempted units are some of the oldest, and

         23  least efficient operating units in New York City.

         24  Based on publicly available data, these exempted

         25  units comprise approximately nine percent of the
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          2  total CO2 emissions from New York City generating

          3  facilities.  We respectfully submit that the

          4  Council's intent would be more completely realized

          5  if these units were treated no differently than

          6  other generators.

          7                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          8  address the Council on this matter.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         10  you, Mr. Baker and Mr. Teetz.  Yes, you both have

         11  very, very detailed statements and make very

         12  significant points to ponder with regard to what you

         13  characterize as punitive approach of the bill.  And

         14  the other part of the bill that talks about the

         15  exemption for facilities under the PSC.  We've

         16  always valued all of your input, and we will treat

         17  this testimony with no less.  You make several

         18  points which I'll take to heart.  I don't have any

         19  real questions with respect to what you've put

         20  forward.  They will get all due consideration as we

         21  further contemplate the future of the bill before us

         22  today.

         23                 Councilman Vallone does have

         24  questions, so I recognize him for questions at this

         25  time.  Peter Vallone.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you Mr.

          3  Chair.  Thank you both for your testimony.  I think

          4  it boils down to lets' wait on RGGI, and I think you

          5  know why we don't want to do that.

          6                 Well, Mr. Teetz, you give some

          7  interesting criticisms which we'll look into, and

          8  you both mention the Con Ed, and the Chair and I

          9  will look into why that situation exists, and

         10  whether something should be done about that.

         11                 But Mister, you gave us some advice

         12  and we appreciate it.  Some of it's good, but one of

         13  it says "support the siting of new plants within New

         14  York City".  They will displace older plants.  You

         15  know, in theory that's possible.  But the residents

         16  of my district in New York City shouldn't be guinea

         17  pigs in this theory that may or may not happen.  In

         18  theory, they all continue to exist.  And we need the

         19  power from the old plants, the new plants.  If

         20  someone can guarantee me that an old plant is

         21  shutting down, then yes, I'll support a new one.

         22  That's what happened with Poletti.  If you're just

         23  going to say, maybe, possibly in the future the old

         24  ones will close down, that's not enough.

         25                 And you said to "discourage the
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          2  construction of transmission lines into coal- fired

          3  generation sources upwind". True.  But you didn't

          4  say encourage transmission lines from clean

          5  hydroelectric power that exists right now, that's

          6  trying to sell us power.  And that's something that

          7  we should absolutely do.

          8                 So, a little advice from us too, to

          9  you guys, and thank you both.  And we look forward

         10  to working with you on this.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you both

         12  very much.  I appreciate your being here today.

         13                 The next panel.  Again, we're going

         14  to be placing people in panels.  Corrie Freedman, of

         15  the American Lung Association of New York City;

         16  Jason Babbie, of NYPIRG; and Anthony Gigantiello, of

         17  C.H.O.K.E.

         18                 Okay, a pleasure to have you here.

         19  We're going to have Council Member Vallone act out

         20  of title, he's functioning as counsel to the

         21  Committee, in that he will give the oath to the

         22  witnesses.  Our counsel to the Committee had to take

         23  a short break.

         24                 COUNSEL MEMBER VALLONE: This has

         25  nothing to do with me not trusting you personally.
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          2  I just happen to be the only attorney sitting up

          3  here right now.  So the three of you, if you would

          4  raise your right hand, do you swear or affirm the

          5  testimony you are about to give to this Committee is

          6  the truth.

          7                 MR. BABBIE: Yes.

          8                 MS. FREEDMAN: Yes.

          9                 MR. GIGANTIELLO: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         12  Peter.  Very happy that you all could be with us

         13  today.  We ask that you identify yourselves for the

         14  record.  You can proceed in whatever order you wish.

         15    Ladies first is always a good policy with me, but

         16  it's your panel.

         17                 MS. FREEDMAN: Good afternoon.  My

         18  name is Corrie Freedman.  I'm here on behalf of the

         19  American Lung Association of the City of New York.

         20  And on behalf of the American Lung Association, I'm

         21  here to offer support for Intro. No. 148A, which

         22  will cap carbon dioxide emissions from electric

         23  generating units.

         24                 New Yorkers are exposed to some of

         25  the most unhealthy air pollution levels in the
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          2  country.  For the sixth year in a row, the American

          3  Lung Association's State of the Air 20005 report

          4  found that the air quality in New York City is poor.

          5    In fact, Bronx, Kings, and Richmond counties

          6  received "Fs" for ozone levels, while Bronx,

          7  Manhattan, and Queens counties received "Fs" for

          8  levels of particle pollution.  Ozone and particle

          9  pollution pose serious health threats for all New

         10  York City residents, especially to the two million

         11  New Yorkers living with respiratory diseases, like

         12  asthma, emphysema, and chronic bronchitis.

         13                 The Lung Association supports

         14  regulating carbon dioxide emissions from power

         15  plants, which is a potent gas linked to global

         16  warming.  A continued increase of emissions of

         17  carbon dioxide, one of the principal greenhouse

         18  gases, will have serious negative consequences for

         19  lung health.  Researchers have discovered a direct

         20  relationship between days when the temperature is

         21  above 70 degrees and the chance for ambient ozone

         22  levels to exceed the health standards.

         23                 Ozone is directly linked to air

         24  temperature.  Ozone is a highly reactive form of

         25  oxygen that is formed when pollution is cooked on
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          2  hot, bright sunny days.  It has been shown to

          3  trigger asthma attacks in those who have the disease

          4  and can damage the structure and function of a

          5  child's lung.  Such damage can be so severe that a

          6  child who has been breathing this pollutant can have

          7  less lung capacity than they otherwise should.

          8  Ozone eats through rubber in high concentrations,

          9  and is used to purify drinking water, and is a

         10  powerful respiratory irritant.

         11                 Researchers in California assessed

         12  the link between "ozone action days", a term used to

         13  describe when levels exceed health standards, and

         14  daily temperature.  What they discovered in Los

         15  Angeles was that there was little chance of an

         16   "ozone action day" when temperatures were 70

         17  degrees or cooler, yet there was a 100 percent

         18  chance of an "ozone action day" when temperatures

         19  were above 90 degrees.  Thus, efforts to reduce

         20  global warming will lower the number of days when

         21  meteorological conditions favor ozone formation.

         22                 Additionally, efforts to target

         23  greenhouse gas emissions, like carbon dioxide, are

         24  expected to lower all power plant pollutants as the

         25  process of producing electricity becomes more
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          2  efficient.  Doing so will directly improve public

          3  health, by decreasing air pollutants know to trigger

          4  respiratory disease.

          5                 Currently, the levels of ambient

          6  ozone and fine particle pollution in New York make

          7  people sick and cut lives short.  Researchers from

          8  Carnegie Mellon University assessed the health

          9  benefits that would result if greenhouse gas

         10  emissions were reduced.  They found that reducing

         11  global warming pollution could achieve at least a 10

         12  percent reduction in ambient ozone and fine particle

         13  levels.  Over a 20- year period, 8,500 premature

         14  deaths in the New York City metropolitan area could

         15  be avoided as the air becomes cleaner.

         16                 We have a unique opportunity at the

         17  City level to address power plant pollution with

         18  Intro. No. 148A and improve the public health.  The

         19  Lung Association is pleased to support this

         20  legislation and urges it be enacted into law.  Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you

         23  Corrina.  Jason.

         24                 MR. BABBIE: Good afternoon. I'm Jason

         25  K. Babbie.  I am the Senior Environmental Policy
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          2  Analyst for the New York Public Interest Research

          3  Group, NYPIRG.

          4                 I'd like to thank Chairman Gennaro,

          5  Council Member Vallone, and other members of the

          6  Committee for an opportunity to testify today on the

          7  latest version of Intro. No. 148, which creates a

          8  declining cap on the carbon dioxide pollution from

          9  power plants.

         10                 NYPIRG supports this bill, and the

         11  changes made to the bill.  I think it provides clear

         12  improvement that demonstrates how New York City is

         13  taking global warming seriously.  And is a leader in

         14  the effort to reduce global warming pollution.

         15                 There are lots of scientific reasons

         16  to deal with global warming.  I will not go through

         17  those today.  But I think that there are other

         18  political and policy justifications on why we need

         19  to move forward with this, and move forward with it

         20  now.

         21                 And I had to get a little help to

         22  move us forward, both on the Federal and the State

         23  level.  On the Federal level, there's a giant void

         24  of action.  The Bush Administration has continued to

         25  walk away from any mandatory reductions of global
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          2  warming.  In Congress, there's the gaining momentum

          3  for dealing with the problem.  However, that is

          4  still a couple of years away.

          5                 On the State and regional level,

          6  negotiations continue to happen.  However, we're

          7  seeing some delays in the actual implementation

          8  dates.  Even when it does continue to move forward,

          9  it will be years before it's actually implemented,

         10  and we start seeing those benefits.  Which is in

         11  contrast to what 148 would do.  If passed this year,

         12  we would see it within the next two years, we'd see

         13  real reductions.

         14                 And specifically, we would see many

         15  thousands of tons of pollution, of global warming

         16  pollution, not -- improving the quality of New

         17  Yorkers.

         18                 I just think that there is a really

         19  good benefit for the largest City in the region for

         20  taking concrete, decisive action.  And it gives

         21  something for the decision makers to point to when

         22  they are seeing continual decline of emissions in an

         23  area. And that is something that I think is greatly

         24  needed right now in the negotiations as we're moving

         25  forward in the final stages, and will help bolster
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          2  New York's position in trying to get a strong

          3  greenhouse gas emission --.

          4                 Having a steady declining rate gives

          5  us measurable results.  And it guarantees us that

          6  New York will not be contributing to global warming

          7  at the rate it was. And that's I think one of the

          8  major improvements from the first bill, by setting a

          9  total cap versus the rate cap.

         10                 Secondly, I think that the price cap

         11  for the pollution credit allows flexibility to make

         12  sure that consumers aren't going to be burdened too

         13  much if anything goes wrong.  But also, it allows

         14  technologist to develop, and develop in the New York

         15  City area, to help provide solutions within the

         16  power sector. Specifically, I think it can move us

         17  toward energy efficiency, conservation, and

         18  alternatives.  Energy efficiency and conservation,

         19  of course will insulate us from swings in the market

         20  with high fuel prices as will renewable energy.

         21                 I think one of the questions that

         22  remains is how the credits will be allocated.  And

         23  we would like to see -- NYPIRG supports all the

         24  credits either being sold or auctioned off to the

         25  generators.  And then using that money for energy
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          2  efficiency, conservation and renewable efforts.

          3  That helps provide a price buffer for the average

          4  consumer, as well as develop technology in the area,

          5  and move us on a much better path.

          6                 Also, it keeps with the principal

          7  that polluters should be paying to pollute, not the

          8  public.  And that's an important distinction and

          9  characterization.  We also think that keeping 10

         10  percent of the credits in reserve seems to be rather

         11  prudent.

         12                 Regardless of any other energy acts,

         13  New York City acting will provide benefits for

         14  global warming as well as local air quality

         15  benefits.  However, we think that others will act,

         16  and if they do, then what this guarantees us local

         17  benefits.  As well as entry into the market earlier,

         18  and getting us the competitive economic advantage.

         19                 With that, thank you for the

         20  opportunity.  NYPIRG supports City Council passing

         21  Intro. No. 148, and encourages Mayor Bloomberg to do

         22  the same.  I'd also like to say that this goes

         23  really well, hand in hand with Intro. No. 661, which

         24  we hope the City Council will also be passing, and

         25  putting on the Mayor' desk this month.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          3  Thank you. Appreciate that.

          4                 MR. GIGANTIELLO:  Thank you.  Good

          5  afternoon.  My mane is Anthony Gigantiello.  I am

          6  President of C.H.O.K.E., the Coalition to Help

          7  Organize a Kleaner Environment, and a lifelong

          8  resident of Astoria, Queens.

          9                 C.H.O.K.E. Is made up of community,

         10  environmental, coop, condo, tenant, homeowner, and

         11  civic associations representing 400,000 families

         12  throughout the City of New York, and into

         13  Westchester.

         14                 C.H.O.K.E. Is in full support of

         15  Intro. No. 148A. It conforms to our missions

         16  statement, No new power plants will be built unless

         17  their operation is coupled with the elimination of

         18  existing pollutant generating plants and/or

         19  installation of other equipment that results in the

         20  reduction of current overall pollution levels.

         21                 We are based in Astoria, surrounded

         22  by four existing power plants, two mini turbines,

         23  two additional 500 megawatt plants generators being

         24  built as we speak. In addition, we have two

         25  airports, many bridges, numerous highways, and is
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          2  probably one of the busiest areas in Queens.  The

          3  area is often referred to as Asthma Alley.  It

          4  continues to receive an "F" in air quality by the

          5  American Lung Association.

          6                 In addition, the community hospital,

          7  Mount Sinai of Queens, is planning to open up a wing

          8  addressing the problem of air- borne illnesses and

          9  disease.

         10                 We feel, by decreasing CO2, we'll

         11  have a collateral effect on the other pollutants,

         12  that will also be decreased from these power plants.

         13                 We're hoping that this bill will

         14  force the older plants to clean up or repower.

         15  Repowering means replace the old generators with new

         16  technology.  In most cases, they could probably

         17  double their capacity, operating more efficiently by

         18  burning less fuel, making the companies more

         19  competitive and allowing the companies to meet the

         20  future electrical demands of this City. Repowering

         21  could reduce emissions by close to 80 percent.  A

         22  win/win for the companies, but most importantly, for

         23  our children and us.

         24                 As a representative of C.H.O.K.E., I

         25  thank Council Member Vallone, Chairman Gennaro, and
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          2  the other members of the Council for introduction of

          3  this bill, and urge every member of the City Council

          4  to support Intro. No. 148A.  Intro. No. 148A would

          5  be a breath of fresh air for everyone who works,

          6  lives, and breaths in the City of New.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          8  Thank you all.  We really appreciate your

          9  wholehearted support of the bill before us today.

         10  You each represent great organizations that we've

         11  been happy to work with in partnership throughout

         12  the years, and I just appreciate your support on

         13  this and all of our other efforts.

         14                 I don't have any detailed questions,

         15  but it is nice to have your strong support, and we

         16  appreciate and we'll keep you in the loop as we go

         17  forward.  Peter?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I just want

         19  to add my thanks.  It's been a pleasure to work with

         20  the three of you, and we look forward to continuing

         21  to do that throughout the course of this bill, and

         22  any other measures you think we should undertake

         23  here at City Hall.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Our final panel.

         25    Marc Brammer, of the New York Climate Rescue;
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          2  Charles Church, of Sierra Club New York City Group;

          3  and Annie Wilson, Sierra Club Atlantic Chapter.

          4                 So a little competition here between

          5  the Sierra Club New York City Group and the Sierra

          6  Club Atlantic Chapter.  We'll see who wins.

          7                 Marc, how long is your show?  Okay,

          8  good.

          9                 While you're doing that Marc, we're

         10  going to multitask you by swearing you in as you're

         11  doing what you're doing. But you've got to pay

         12  diligent attention, because you're swearing now.

         13                 MS. DE CONSTANZO: Please raise your

         14  right hand.  In the testimony that you are about to

         15  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         16  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         17                 MR. BRAMMER: I do.

         18                 MR. CHURCH: Yes.

         19                 MS. WILSON: I do.

         20                 MS. DE CONSTANZO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.  So

         22  maybe we'll have Annie go first while Marc's getting

         23  set up?

         24                 MS. WILSON: Hello, good afternoon.  I

         25  wish to present a few comments on the proposed bill
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          2  148A.  The relation to carbon dioxide emissions from

          3  the electric generating facilities.

          4                 The reductions of the CO2 emissions

          5  by the electrical generation facilities must be a

          6  component in a mandate to reduce the City's CO2

          7  emissions.

          8                 Eighty percent of New York City's

          9  electricity in peak use, is generated in Queens.

         10  The local air quality in this borough might be

         11  improved as a reductions in power plant emissions.

         12                 Unfortunately, this Intro will exempt

         13  the Con Ed steam generating facilities.  The recent

         14  expansion a the East 14th Street facility increases

         15  the emissions 40 to 60 percent in a community with a

         16  high rate of asthma and other respiratory diseases.

         17                 Increasing the electricity imports

         18  into the City as an offset is unacceptable.  Long-

         19  distance transmission, the vulnerability of the

         20  transmission system, as well as the volatile fuel

         21  prices, I believe, would make this a risky option.

         22                 The Council should be involved with

         23  creating State legislation which would allow

         24  residential and commercial entities to reverse meter

         25  into the grid and adopt real- time metering.  There
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          2  are some pending proposals on the State level for

          3  these two measures at this time, and by them

          4  involving the City Council, I think it would lend

          5  weight to the support of this type of lawmaking.

          6                 The reduction of electrical demand,

          7  encouraging sustainable energy technologies, and

          8  conservation must also be integral components of a

          9  comprehensive CO2 reduction plan in the City of New

         10  York.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         12  Thank you.  We'll just hear all of the statements

         13  and then if we have comments, we'll just do

         14  everybody all at once.  Thank you.  Thank you, Ms.

         15  Wilson.

         16                 Mr. Church.

         17                 MR. CHURCH: Good afternoon.  My name

         18  is Charles Church, Chair of the Climate Crisis

         19  Committee, Sierra Club, New York City Group.  I am

         20  speaking today on behalf of that group, which at the

         21  point in time is comprised of about 15,000 members.

         22                 I wish to thank you, Chairman Gennaro

         23  and the Committee for the opportunity to testify

         24  here today on bill Intro. No. 148A which imposes a

         25  cap on emissions of carbon dioxide by power
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          2  generators in the City.

          3                 Sierra Club, New York City Group

          4  supports this effort to bring under control and

          5  reduce carbon dioxide emissions from power

          6  companies.  The time for the debate about the harsh

          7  realities of global warming is long past.  That

          8  threat is real, and dire.  So we need to spare no

          9  effort in reducing our emissions of carbon dioxide

         10  into the atmosphere.  Since 1896, when eminent

         11  Swedish chemist Svante Arhennious warned that carbon

         12  dioxide could, in due time, heat up the earth, we

         13  have proceeded to prove him right.

         14                 Carbon dioxide is the most important

         15  global warming pollutant, because there is such

         16  colossal amounts of it, and since it stays in the

         17  atmosphere for so long, more than 100 years.  Power

         18  generator pump enormous amounts of carbon dioxide

         19  into the sky every day.  The City needs to tackle

         20  this problem by bringing this contribution to what

         21  may become a nightmare.

         22                 The intentions behind this bill are

         23  excellent, and beyond question.  That said, we deem

         24  it important that some more work be done on the bill

         25  to clarify its terms.  I want to be clear on that, I
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          2  am not speaking delay at all.  But I think some

          3  aspects of the bill can be improved and Sierra Club

          4  New York City Group offers whatever help we might

          5  provide in that regard.  And I have set forth my

          6  contact information here, and I would enjoy working

          7  with you to what ever extent you wish.

          8                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  testify here today.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         11  Thank you, Mr. Church, I appreciate that.  Marc.

         12                 MR. BRAMMER: Just for the record, my

         13  name is Marc Brammer, I'm the Executive Director of

         14  New York Climate Rescue. Thank you for having me

         15  testify today.  Thank you, Chairman Gennaro, and

         16  thanks again for the last word, which I really

         17  appreciate.

         18                 I will try to be really quick because

         19  I know we've been here for some time.  But

         20  basically, what I'd like to do is really focus on

         21  the economics of the bill. And my main point here is

         22  to give the Committee real confidence in moving

         23  forward on this bill, despite comments earlier today

         24  about dire economic impact of this bill.

         25                 With particular reference to the idea
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          2  of the concept that stakeholders will be harmed in

          3  the process of passing this bill, the way I see it,

          4  and I'd like to show very quickly, with the slides

          5  here today, economically what the two scenarios are

          6  that this City is facing.

          7                 We are facing serious, serious

          8  economic ramifications from the energy markets right

          9  now.  And this bill is actually the best thing I've

         10  seen from an economic standpoint, to address energy

         11  use in the City, which is going to get more

         12  expensive, regardless.  So if you want to interrupt

         13  me at any time, please do, but I'll try to go

         14  through this rapidly.

         15                 Obviously, climate change is real, we

         16  already know that, I think I'll move beyond that.

         17  And I've submitted some scientific update to that

         18  effect.

         19                 To get to the major point here I'd

         20  like to make is that we are facing both a short-

         21  term and a long- term energy market crisis.

         22  Efficiency is absolutely required to address this.

         23  We don't have a choice.  And I'll show you why.

         24  That's why I think that 148A is not only good for

         25  consumers, but it's better for the tax base, because
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          2  it ensures expenditures on efficiencies happen here.

          3    And it also lowers cost through efficiency with

          4  local compliance to RGGI.  I think that's very

          5  important.  We face very high prices, so therefore,

          6  we're the most logical candidates for being more

          7  efficient.

          8                 Obviously, as mentioned before, the

          9  secondary impacts of the bill will be great in terms

         10  of reducing health costs in the City.

         11                 So I think that those who were

         12  opposing this bill really need to come to the table

         13  and tell us exactly why they think the economic

         14  benefits from a health standpoint aren't on the

         15  table here.  Because they seem to be ignoring those

         16  entirely.

         17                 And then, finally, limiting

         18  greenhouse gas emissions, which are linked both to

         19  efficiency and pollution are both under

         20  consideration and will have a beneficial effect on

         21  all the factors that we're talking about today.

         22                 I just want to point out, 75 percent

         23  of all studies done in the past 10 years, that's

         24  roughly 1,000 studies, say that climate change is

         25  happening, human beings are causing it, and it's
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          2  moving forward and we need to address it.  Zero

          3  percent of all peer- reviewed studies have ever said

          4  the opposite.  Only 25 percent say no, so clearly we

          5  can move forward with a great deal of confidence on

          6  that.

          7                 What you're looking at here is the

          8  production capacity versus use in the United States

          9  of America for natural gas.  We are at 100 percent

         10  capacity utilization.  We have no room for error.

         11  So, therefore, we know that prices will go up.  As

         12  you can see by this chart right here.  Our prices

         13  are indeed rising, and we're having increasing

         14  spikes.

         15                 The age of wells for natural gas in

         16  the United States are getting older, which means

         17  they're productive capacity is less robust.  That

         18  means we have to import liquid natural gas, which is

         19  more expensive.  And, as you can seem net imports

         20  are predicted to rise over time.  That means, that

         21  as we move forward, in order to be clean, we have to

         22  rely on natural gas, natural gas will be more

         23  expensive.  That absolutely axiomatically means that

         24  efficiency is the only way to make energy costs

         25  competitive in New York.
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          2                 On the oil side, it's just as bad.

          3  We talk about the two basic energy sources that we

          4  can utilize legally in the City of New York: Those

          5  are oil and natural gas.  This is discoveries of oil

          6  wells worldwide, major field discoveries.  As you

          7  can see, there is a serious downward trend in big

          8  new discoveries.  So we are facing a demand

          9  constrained environment. Which means it's not a

         10  matter of just increasing supplies, there is no

         11  supply.  We have to respond with efficiency.  That

         12  is the only option.

         13                 As you can see, this is Exxon's

         14  estimates of oil wells going forward after 2005, and

         15  it just gets worse.  In fact, they predicted that

         16  within five to ten years, non- OPEC production will

         17  peak.  So it doesn't matter whether we go to oil or

         18  we go to natural gas.  In the long term, we need

         19  this bill.  We need this bill now, because we don't

         20  have that much time.  We have a few years in which

         21  to make the generating capacity in the City of New

         22  York move efficient.  If we don't do that, costs

         23  will go up.  They will spike, and they will be

         24  passed on to consumers.  So we have no choice.

         25                 And this is just to give you an
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          2  example of what's going on.  This is something I put

          3  together.  This is two different estimates.  This is

          4  the 1995 estimates in grey, with the recent 2005

          5  estimates going forward in dark grey.  And then in

          6  yellow, you see actual prices.  This is yearly oil

          7  prices.  You can see the massive difference between

          8  the projection and the actual price. And even the

          9  projections are going up.  So we know that we're

         10  going to be facing higher oil prices, and we're

         11  going to be facing higher natural gas prices, and

         12  there will be spikes in those prices.  And we all

         13  know how that works.  Those prices get passed on to

         14  consumers.

         15                 For the electric generators in New

         16  York City to start saying, "Well, we don't need to

         17  improve the efficiency of our plants, because that

         18  will pass on price to consumers" is completely

         19  wrong.  Prices are going to get passed on to

         20  consumers no matter what.  The only way to make sure

         21  that those prices are at all reasonable, is to make

         22  sure that the generating capacity in the City of New

         23  York is as efficient as possible.

         24                 So I hope I've made that point.  As

         25  you can see, there's some more data showing price
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          2  increases over time and future estimates.  This is

          3  recent natural gas prices.

          4                 I don't understand.  Basically, the

          5  alternative scenario which 148 does provide, is that

          6  you shift those cost increases from price spikes in

          7  the fuel costs to a regulated, long term financed

          8  improvements in efficiency in the plan, and then

          9  also you increase the economic setup for demand side

         10  management. Efficiency at the consumer end.

         11                 That's the only way to meet this

         12  crisis.  If we're going to be sustainable, this is

         13  where we are now, this is where we need to get to,

         14  this is where the opponents of 148 want us to go,

         15  and what I want to point out is the more we delay,

         16  the greater the costs are going to be.  And those

         17  costs are going to come in the form of price

         18  increases of fuel, both natural gas and oil.  So it

         19  doesn't matter what the future is from the

         20  standpoint of whether we use oil or natural gas.

         21  Both are going to go up, and significantly.  So we

         22  need to address this.

         23                 So how do we get there?  Current

         24  efficiency for a natural gas plant is about 33 to 35

         25  percent.  A good combined cycle power plant will get
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          2  you between 50 and 60.  Onsite micro turbines using

          3  natural gas are 80 percent efficient.  So we can get

          4  almost 50 percent efficiency just moving to

          5  technologies -- these are existing technologies.  We

          6  can get an additional 35 percent through demand side

          7  management.  That means incentives to consumers to

          8  conserve energy.  We can get 50 to 80 percent

          9  reduction in energy use, possible using currently

         10  available technology and conservation.  This is

         11  reality.

         12                 The stipulation that this bill is not

         13  possible with the five percent reductions you earn

         14  in a year, I don't buy it.  I hate to say it, but

         15  EDC right now, the only stakeholder they seem to be

         16  giving a damn about is the power producers. And

         17  guess what? Those guys are going to have to spend

         18  money, and they're going to have to improve their

         19  plants.

         20                 And they said, "Well, we're going to

         21  have stricter air quality controls under this in the

         22  City of New York".  I don't see why not.  That

         23  doesn't make any sense, not to have that.

         24                 Finally, to just reiterate my points,

         25  the poor strategy is business as usual, price shocks
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          2  get passed on to consumers as we have an upward

          3  trend in prices.  A good strategy, which 148

          4  accomplishes, is that government enforces a system

          5  of efficiency upgrades.  Those costs are financed

          6  through the long term loans, shifting the cost

          7  burden away from consumers, and on to the financial

          8  sector.  The financial sector is much better

          9  equipped to deal with these kinds of things than the

         10  consumer is.  That's good economic policy.

         11                 And finally, hey.  We need to improve

         12  the system anyway, and I really want to reiterate

         13  what Charles Church said, we need to include Con Ed

         14  in this, because Con Ed runs some of the worst

         15  plants.  Those are the real opportunities actually.

         16  So if we include them, this bill actually makes a

         17  lot more economic sense, because Reliant and KeySpan

         18  who do run the cleaner plants can shift some of

         19  their costs on to Con Ed, and Con Ed can improve the

         20  worst plants we have in the City right now.

         21                 And that's the end of my comments.

         22  Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all.

         24  As I told the last panelists, great to work with the

         25  environmental community.  A lot of the good work we
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          2  get done in this Committee, a lot of those ideas are

          3  sort of come from the environmental community, and

          4  we always work closely with you.  We appreciate your

          5  strong support of this bill.  I want to thank you

          6  also Mr. Church, with regard to clarifying the terms

          7  of the bill.  Counsel of the Committee has made a

          8  note to count you as a resource as we go forward.

          9  Marc is always a pleasure to work with you, and

         10  thank you for, even though it's not related to this

         11  Committee, for your help on 661.  We appreciate that

         12  very much.

         13                 MR. BRAMMER: You're very welcome.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And Annie,

         15  always a pleasure to hear from you.  I'm just

         16  curious about the difference between the Sierra Club

         17  Atlantic Chapter and Sierra Club New York City

         18  Group. Which is better?

         19                 MS. WILSON: I'm the Chair of -- both.

         20    This is the City Group, but I'm with the Atlantic

         21  Chapter, as the Energy Committee Chair.  Could I add

         22  that --  Peter Vallone Jr., hydropower from Canada

         23  is an unsustainable form of energy that is not

         24  considered renewable in the RPS guidelines.  So if

         25  you'd like to have a discussion regarding large
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          2  hydro, you can call up, and I'd be very happy to

          3  have a discussion regarding these matters with you.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  We thank

          6  you all for coming, and certainly you'll be in the

          7  loop as we go forward on this bill, and on all the

          8  other things we're doing in this Committee.

          9                 With no one else wishing to be heard

         10   -- oops, I have to say something on the record

         11  regarding testimony that was submitted in writing.

         12  In the meantime, there's no need for the panel to

         13  stay in panel.  I just have to read something else

         14  into the record.  Thank you very much for coming

         15  here today.

         16                 For the record, we received written

         17  testimony from Denise Sheehan, Acting Commissioner

         18  of New York State Department of Environmental

         19  Conservation.  And William Flynn, Chairman of the

         20  New York State Public Service Commission.

         21                 And if no one else wishes to be

         22  heard, we thank everyone for coming and this hearing

         23  is adjourned.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 3:28 p.m.)
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